
RFQ Addendum # 1

Request for Qualifications for
On-Call Building Commissioning
Solicitation # 6121


Date of Addendum # 1:  02/13/2026

The Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for the above-named project is amended as noted in this Addendum.  This Addendum consists of 2 pages.

This Addendum lists questions received and SHA’s responses (see Item 1 below) and extends the Deadline for Submission (see Item 2 below).


Item 1.	The following is a list of questions received and SHA’s responses to those questions:

Question 1.  Do proposing consultants or consultant teams need to demonstrate the ability to fulfill all elements of the questions scope of services?
· For example, if a firm is unable to provide the life safety commissioning component, would that firm be excluded from consideration?
Response:  Consultants should still submit for evaluation even if they do not entirely meet the desired requirements/services outlined in the RFQ. We will potentially make up for service gaps by selecting more than one consultant. Consultants may make up for a lack of service by adding a 3rd party subconsultant. 

Question 2.  How many firms does Seattle Housing Authority anticipate selecting for the on-call commissioning contract?
Response:  A minimum of two Consultants will be selected.
Question 3.  For on-call commissioning services, what is the anticipated volume of work during the contract term, including both new building commissioning and existing building retro-commissioning projects?
Response:  As stated in the RFQ, there is no guarantee of work. However, SHA expects to perform a relatively large volume of retro-commissioning in the form of energy audits. Throughout the contract’s duration we expect to perform 12-15 building energy audits per year. Regarding new construction and full-building commissioning for 2026-2027, our Development Team will likely need commissioning services for their 14378 30th Ave NE project, which is a 100-unit affordable housing development. 

Question 4.  For pre-design commissioning services on new construction projects, does Seattle Housing Authority expect the commissioning provider to:
0. Develop Basis of Design (BOD) narratives for specific building systems?
0. Support and facilitate the design team's development of those narratives? 
1. Response:
1. YES
1. YES. There may be potential for pre-commissioning design services.

Question 5.  For retro-commissioning projects, what level of energy auditing does Seattle Housing Authority anticipate for existing buildings (e.g. ASHRAE Level 1 or ASHRAE Level 2)?
Response:  The firm should be qualified to perform ASHRAE Level 2 audits as required for Clean Building Performance Standards (CBPS) reporting.  See link below for qualification requirements.

https://statics.teams.cdn.office.net/evergreen-assets/safelinks/2/atp-safelinks.html

Question 6.  Does Seattle Housing Authority have recommendations or expectations for identifying and incorporating opportunities to include Section 3 workers as part of commissioning services?
Response:  Professional service contracts for non-construction services that require an advanced degree or professional licensing are not required to be reported as a part of total Section 3 labor hours.  However, professional services staff labor hours are permitted to be reported. 

More detailed information and guidance is available on the HUD EXCHANGE: 

https://www.hudexchange.info/programs/section-3/

https://www.hudexchange.info/section-3/faqs/


Item 2.	The Due Date for the Submission Deadline is extended to (10am, on Wednesday, 02/25/2026
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